
5252 

 CITY OF NORTH POLE 
Regular Meeting 

March 4, 2024 
City Hall Chambers 

125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska 
www.northpolealaska.com 

Monday, March 4, 2024 
Committee of the Whole: 6:30 PM 

Regular City Council Meeting: 7:00 PM 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 
Michael Welch Emily Braniff, CMC 
907-488-8584  907-488-8583 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Chandra Clack – Mayor Pro Tem 907-460-3767 
Anton Keller – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 907-987-2548 
Larry Terch – Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 907-378-9233 
Jeffrey Jacobson    907-460-7733 
Benny Williams  907-388-5911 
David Skipps  907-750-5106 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Invocation

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Approval of the Minutes from February 20, 2024

6. Communications from the Mayor

7. Council Members Questions of the Mayor

8. Citizens Comments (Limited to five (5) minutes per Citizen)

9. Communications from Department Heads and Borough Representative

10. Ongoing Projects Report

11. Unfinished Business
a. Ordinance 2024-02 an Ordinance Amending NPMC Title 2, Chapter 36, Section 050

Categories of Employees, Apprentice
12. New Business

a. Ordinance 2024-03 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending the Compensation
for Council Members

b. Request to Council – Sign Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Assistance to
Firefighters Grant

 

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


c. Request to Council – Paint Old City Water Plant
d. Recommendation to Council – Skid Steer for Public Works
e. Request to Council – Utility Accounts Write-Off Request

13. Council Comments
14. Adjournment

 



Mr. Hu  

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 
  Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Tuesday, February 20, 2024, in the North Pole City 
Hall Council Chambers. 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Mayor Pro Tem Clack called the regular City Council meeting of Tuesday, February 20,2024, to order at 
7:00 p.m. 

Present: 
Chandra Clack – Mayor Pro Tem 
Larry Terch – Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 

Benny Williams  
David Skipps 

Absent: 
Mayor Welch 
Anton Keller – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 
Led by Mayor Pro Tem Clack 

INVOCATION  
Given by Mr. Jacobson 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
Mr. Jacobson moved to approve the agenda of February 20th, 2024 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 
a. Ordinance 2024-02 an Ordinance Amending NPMC Title 2, Chapter 36, Section 050 Categories of

Employees, Apprentice 
b. Resolution 2024-03 Resolution Establishing the Transfer of Funds from Mt. McKinley Bank to the

City of North Pole AML Investment Pool Account 
c. Resolution 2024-04 a Resolution to Approve the Disbursal of Attorney Fees to CSG, Inc. RE: City

V. Williams $2,102,000 

Jeffrey Jacobson  

 



d. Request to Council – Streetlight Survey and Analysis, Respec, LLC $25,360.00 
e. Recommendation to Council – City Water Main Design Award – Respec, LLC 

 

On the Agenda 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Clack, Williams, Terch, Jacobson, Skipps,  
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Mr. Skipps moved to approve the minutes from the February 5th, 2024, meeting. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Terch 
 

On the Minutes 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Skipps, Terch, Jacobson, Clack Williams 
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
• Proclamation – Student of the Month Keira O’Connor 

Mayor Pro Tem Clack invited Kiera O’Connor forward and presented her with a proclamation and a medal for 
being the North Pole City Council Student of the Month for February 2024. Ms. O’Connor received a round of 
applause from the audience and Chambers paused for a photo opportunity.   

• Proclamation – Black History Month 
Mr. Williams read into the record a Proclamation recognizing February 2024 as Black History Month.   
 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR  
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH REPRESENTATIVE 
 

City Utilities Director/Danny Wallace 
Mr. Wallace spoke to the Strategic Planning Committee meeting that he Mayor Pro Tem Clack and Mr. Jacobson 
attended, he reported it was the initial interview with Agnew Beck and he would have more to report in the 
future.  Mr. Wallace spoke of a grant he is working on that would help cyber security within the city.  Mr. Wallace 
reported the Police Department ran out of fuel because of an error on the fuel company’s behalf.  Mr. Wallace 
reported he helped his billing staff gain access to the hallway cameras to better assist customers.  Mr. Wallace 

 



stated bidding for the Skid Steer closed and that he would have a recommendation for Council at the next regular 
Council meeting.  Mr. Wallace reported he is working with HR Administrator/Deputy Clerk Maggie Kimmel to 
build a candidate list for a position that is opening in his department.  Mr. Wallace shared that the Pizza Hut 
building is being worked on and they are complying with permit requirements.  Mr. Wallace reported they had a 
leak that was quickly caught and is being corrected.  Mr. Wallace reported there is an opening in the Utilities 
Department, and it is up on the website if anyone knows of someone looking for a job.   
Mr. Williams asked how the Police Department ran out of fuel, Mr. Wallace reported it was oversight on the part 
of the fuel company, they were contacted and filled the tank.   
Mr. Terch asked how customers are noticed when water is shut off. Mr. Wallace stated he did not know how 
citizens were noticed but it was either by mass text or mass email. He stated he would have to investigate it.  
Mayor Pro Tem Clack asked if the water is going to be shut off eminently, Mr. Wallace stated it is a targeted area 
on 5th Avenue only.  
Mr. Williams asked if the issue were a water main or the citizens’ responsibility, Mr. Wallace stated he would not 
know until the dig was complete.  Mr. Williams asked how the customer pays for the work, Mr. Wallace reported 
it will be between the customer and the contractor doing the work.  He reported it is not in the city.  
 

Fire Department, Chief Heineken 
Chief Heineken shared he had the privilege of attending the Fire Chief’s Conference in Juneau and that he was 
happy to be part of the conversation down there.  Chief Heineken shared he received no promises from any of 
the Legislators but that it was nice to be able to speak about their fire station project.  Chief Heineken said he 
does not expect to have any big changes this year but that he received a lot of positive feedback about it as a 
future project. Chief Heineken spoke to the apprenticeship program that they are working on in his department, 
he shared he has received a lot of feedback from high school students all over the state.  He shared what he said 
about the apprenticeship at the conference and other departments across the state are interested in his program.  
Chief Heineken reported his department responded to a mutual aid fire on Sunday night and it was zero 
survivability fire and spoke to the importance of working smoke detectors.  He reported homes are rebuildable, 
but loss of life is irreplaceable.  
 

Borough Representative, Benny Williams 
Mr. Williams reported the Assembly spoke about closing schools and animal shelters and neither were well 
received issues.  
 

City Clerk, Emily Braniff 
Ms. Braniff reported she continues to find many projects that will keep the Clerk’s Office busy.  She stated that 
there has been a lot of life going on since the last meeting, so she had created no formal report for the Council 
meeting.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

• Ordinance 2024-02 an Ordinance Amending NPMC Title 2, Chapter 36, Section 050 Categories of 
Employees, Apprentice 

 

 



Mr. Jacobson moved to advance Ordinance 2024-02 an Ordinance Amending NPMC Title 2, Chapter 36, Section 
050 Categories of Employees, Apprentice 
 

Seconded by Mr. Williams 
On the Ordinance 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Clack, Terch, Skipps, Jacobson, Williams 
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller 
 

• Resolution 2024-03 Resolution Establishing the Transfer of Funds from Mt. McKinley Bank to the City of 
North Pole AML Investment Pool Account 

 

Mr. Jacobson moved to adopt Resolution 2024-03 Resolution Establishing the Transfer of Funds from Mt. 
McKinley Bank to the City of North Pole AML Investment Pool Account 
 

Seconded by Mr. Williams 
 

On the Resolution 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Clack, Terch, Skipps, Williams, Jacobson 
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller 
 

• Resolution 2024-04 a Resolution to Approve the Disbursal of Attorney Fees to CSG, Inc. RE: City V. 
Williams $2,102,000 

 

Mr. Terch moved to adopt Resolution 2024-04 a Resolution to Approve the Disbursal of Attorney Fees to CSG, 
Inc. RE: City V. Williams $2,102,000 
 

Seconded by Mr. Williams 
 
Mr. Jacobson moved to amend Resolution 2024-04 to amend the disbursal amount to $2,089,186.42. 
 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps 
 

On the Resolution 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 

 



Yes: Jacobson, Clack, Skipps, Williams, Terch 
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller 
 

On the Resolution, as Amended 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Clack, Terch, Skipps, Williams, Jacobson 
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller 
 

• Request to Council – Streetlight Survey and Analysis, Respec, LLC $25,360.00 
 

Mr. Williams moved to approve the Request to Council – Streetlight Survey and Analysis, Respec, LLC 
$25,360.00 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps 
 

On the Request to Council 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Skipps, Williams, Terch, Clack, Jacobson 
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller  
 

• Recommendation to Council – City Water Main Design Award – Respec, LLC 
 

Mr. Jacobson moved to approve the Recommendation to Council – City Water Main Design Award – Respec, LLC 
 

Seconded by Mr. Skipps 
 

On the Memo 
DISCUSSION 
None 
PASSED 
Yes: Skipps, Williams, Terch, Clack, Jacobson 
No: 0 
Absent: Welch, Keller  
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Mr. Skipps reminded everyone that the shoulders are dangerous this time of year and to drive safely.   
 

 



Mr. Jacobson shared that 2024 Arctic Man was cancelled and shared the newspaper article with the Council.  Mr. 
Jacobson stated the State Federal Highway Transportation plan was rejected by the Federal Government and so 
they are back to the drawing board.  Mr. Jacobson shared the story of William Ewing, the first black Alaskan miner 
who had a very rich claim here in Fairbanks area.  Mr. Jacobson reported Mr. Ewing made a large donation to the 
Tuskegee University making a huge impact on black Americans which came right from the rich hills of Fairbanks.  
 

Mr. Williams shared concern for a letter he received campaigning to get rid of nonprofit gambling because of the 
wonderful programs it helps.  Mr. Williams spoke to the impact the Tuskegee Airman had on history, doing more 
with less and generating a history of strong men.  Mr. Williams read into the record several quote from African 
Americans through history.   
 

Mr. Terch thanked Mayor Welch for attending on Zoom and congratulated Ms. O’Connor on becoming the North 
Pole City Council student of the month.  Mr. Terch asked everyone to pray, pray together as a family and pray as 
a community. Mr. Terch encouraged everyone to pray for peace, hope and love.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Clack agreed with everything the other Council members had to say and shared that yesterday is 
over and to embrace new changes in a positive way going forward. Mayor Pro Tem Clack congratulated Ms. 
O’Connor for being an outstanding high school student.    
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Skipps moved to adjourn. 
 

Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Clack 
 

The regular meeting of Tuesday February 20, 2024, adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 
These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council on Monday, 
March 4, 2024.   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
  
___________________________________ 
Emily Braniff, CMC 
City Clerk      

 



Sponsored by: Mayor Pro Tem Chandra Clack 1 
Introduced: February 20, 2024 2 

3 
4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-02 5 
6 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE AMENDING 7 

MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 2 CHAPTER 36 SECTION 050 CATEGORIES OF 8 

EMPLOYEES 9 

10 
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code are a continually changing requirement;11 
and12 

13 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole wishes to remain up to date with its protections for its14 
employees and Council; and15 

16 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:17 

18 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.19 

20 
Section 2. Title 2: Administration and Personnel, Division 1: Administration, Chapter 2: City21 
Council, Section 36.050 Categories of employees are hereby amended in the North Pole Code of22 
Ordinances as follows: [new text in red, deleted text in strikethrough] see attached.23 

2.36.050 Categories of employees.24 
A.    The following categories are utilized in the context of City employment:25 

1. Full-Time. This position is included as a part of the annual operating budget and is to26 
be considered part of the regular staffing of the City. 27 

a. Exempt. Those employees who meet the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)28 
requirements for exemption from the Act, who work the hours necessary to 29 
accomplish the job and are considered salaried employees. 30 

b. Nonexempt. Those employees who are subject to the recordkeeping requirements31 
of the FLSA and are considered hourly employees. 32 

 



PASSED/FAILED 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 

2.    Term – Full-Time. Position funded for more than six months, but less than two years, 33 
with a projected termination date which may be adjusted according to funding limitations 34 
or completion of the work. Employees hired to fill such vacancies shall enjoy all benefits of 35 
the full-time category, with the exception of employment protection beyond the life of the 36 
designated project(s). 37 

3.    Temporary. Positions deemed to be temporary will not exceed one thousand forty 38 
hours in one calendar year period. 39 

4.    Casual/Part-Time. These are positions with a workweek of less than forty hours. 40 

5.    Volunteer Fire Department Personnel. Employees in this class receive no monetary 41 
compensation for duties performed. These personnel are subject to the City drug policy 42 
and disciplinary procedures, must follow the grievance procedures, and are eligible for 43 
training and tuition reimbursements. They are not eligible for leave with pay, retirement, 44 
or medical, hospitalization, life and accident insurance benefits extended to full-time 45 
employees. Should a volunteer be hired as a full-time employee, the date of hire will be the 46 
date that employee begins full-time employment. 47 

6. Apprentice. Employees in this category are performing on the job training to gain 48 
experience, education and certifications necessary to qualify for career positions within a 49 
specific career field. Position may be full-time or part-time for a term no longer than 24 50 
months. Apprentice employees are not eligible for leave with pay, retirement or medical, 51 
hospitalization, life and accident insurance benefits extended to permanent full-time 52 
employees.   53 

 54 
Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon signing.  55 
 56 
ADOPTED THE ____ DAY OF . 57 
  58 
 59 

________________________________ 60 
Mayor Pro Tem Chandra Clack  61 

   62 
ATTEST:      63 
 64 
_______________________________ 65 
Emily Braniff, CMC 66 
City Clerk   67 

 



Sponsored by: Mayor Pro Tem Clack 1 
Introduced: March 4, 2024 2 

3 
4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 5 
6 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE AMENDING THE 7 

COMPENSATION FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS 8 

9 
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code are a continually changing requirement;10 
and11 

12 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole wishes to remain up to date with its protections for its13 
employees and Council; and14 

15 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:16 

17 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.18 

19 
Section 2. Title 2: Administration and Personnel, Division 1: Administration, Chapter 2: City20 
Council, Section 12.350: Compensation, are hereby amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances21 
as follows: [new text in red, deleted text in strikethrough] see attached.22 

2.12.350 Compensation.23 
A.    Compensation for City Council members shall be $300 $400 (three hundred four hundred24 
dollars) per member per month, paid and prorated for each regular Council meeting attended.25 
Council members shall receive an additional $100 $150 (one hundred and fifty dollars) for each26 
special meeting attended called in accordance with NPMC 2.12.300 and work sessions shall be27 
compensated at $50 $100 (fifty one hundred dollars) per meeting. Committee meetings do not28 
constitute a special meeting for purposes of compensation. Council members attending the29 
Fairbanks North Star Borough Assembly meeting as City of North Pole representatives shall30 
receive $125 $175 (one hundred twenty seventy-five dollars) per meeting attended. Council31 
members attending any other meeting that exceeds one hour in duration as a designated32 
participant representing the City of North Pole shall receive $50 $100 (fifty one hundred dollars)33 
per meeting attended. Compensation for attending the Fairbanks North Star Borough Assembly34 
or other meeting as a designated participant shall be processed by the City Clerk upon receipt of35 

 

https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/NorthPole/#!/NorthPole02/NorthPole0212.html#2.12.300


PASSED/FAILED 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  

an email confirming your attendance, to include an attached agenda, abbreviated agenda, or36 
statement to your speaking points or participation and present your report at the next regular37 
City Council meeting. The email must be submitted to the City Clerk within thirty days of the38 
meeting date or payment will not be made. On the occasion that the Mayor Pro-Tem must act as39 
Mayor for at least 4 hours more than their normal obligations per week the Mayor Pro Tem shall40 
receive an extra $100 (one hundred dollars) per week. Compensation for attending meetings41 
shall be paid following the last day of each month served.42 

43 
44 

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective after the 2024 Municipal Election45 
Results are Certified and will only affect Newly Elected Officials.46 

47 
ADOPTED THE ____ DAY OF .48 

49 
50 

________________________________ 51 
Mayor Pro Tem Clack  52 

53 
ATTEST:54 

55 
_______________________________56 
Emily Braniff, CMC57 
City Clerk  58 

 



FY 2023 ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM 
REGIONAL GRANT APPLICATION 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 
 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is being executed by Capital City Fire Rescue EIN 92-
0038816 (hereinaLer “host agency” or CCFR) and the following listed parNcipaNng agencies and their EIN 
(hereinaLer “parNcipaNng agencies”): 

ParNcipaNng Agency EIN 
Municipality of Anchorage Fire Department 92-00059987 

Bayside Fire Department 92-00030845 
Chena-Goldstream Fire & Rescue 92-0063999 
Chugiak Volunteer Fire & Rescue 92-0077503 

City of North Pole Fire Department 92-6001585 
City of Whi\er Fire Department 92-0041440 

Fairbanks Fire Department 92-6000140 
Haines Volunteer Fire Department 47-0888706 

Girdwood Fire Rescue 92-0164627 
Moose Pass Volunteer Fire Company 92-0073170 

Seward Fire Department 92-6000086 
Sitka Fire Department 92-0041163 

Skagway Fire Department 92-6000088 
Women’s Bay Volunteer Fire Department 92-0030845 

 

Nothing in this MOU should be construed as limiNng or impeding the basic spirit of cooperaNon which 
exists between the parNcipaNng agencies, listed above. 

WHEREAS, the host agency, and parNcipaNng agencies desire to parNcipate in the FY23 Assistance 
to Firefighters Grant (AFG) Program (the “Program”) regional applicaNon (the “ApplicaNon”); and 

WHEREAS, the host agency and parNcipaNng agencies have been idenNfied as eligible jurisdicNons 
able to collecNvely implement the objecNves and goals of the program; and 

WHEREAS, the host agency and parNcipaNng agencies have need for P25 Portable Radios; and 

WHEREAS, P25 Portable Radios have been idenNfied under the program as a “High Priority” 
equipment item; and 

WHEREAS, Capital City Fire Rescue has been selected through this MOU to be the host agency to 
file the applicaNon on behalf of the parNcipaNng agencies, and 

WHEREAS, Capital City Fire Rescue has been selected through this MOU to administer the FY 2023 
AFG program award (the “award”) and agrees to be the host agency responsible for administraNon of the 
grant including asset accountability and reporNng requirements for those assets acquired under the 
award; and 

 



WHEREAS, Capital City Fire Rescue agrees to serve as host agency for the procurement and 
disbursement of all P25 compliant portable radios, and supporNve components (collecNvely, 
“equipment”) received under the program award; and 

WHEREAS, the program requires the host agency and parNcipaNng agencies to enter into an MOU 
in order to submit the applicaNon; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideraNon of the mutual terms, condiNons, promises, and covenants 
hereinaLer set forth, the host agency and parNcipaNng agencies agree as follows: 

Ar;cle 1. Purpose 

This MOU establishes the relaNonship between, and responsibiliNes of the host agency and the 
parNcipaNng agencies as required under the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS)/Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)/Grant Programs Directorate (GPD), Catalogue of Federal 
DomesNc Assistance (CFDA) 97.044, Fiscal Year 2023 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG), Funding 
Opportunity Number DHS-23-GPD-044-00-98. 

Ar;cle 2. Procedures 

2.1 CCFR will serve as the host agency to submit the applicaNon and serve as the grant administrator 
for the parNcipaNng agencies in the event of an award. 

2.2 Pursuant to the AFG grant program guidelines, all items approved under the applicaNon will be 
procured and administered through CCFR in the event of award. 

2.3 CCFR agrees, as host agency, to provide accountability for the assets acquired under the award 
and to provide reporNng requirement deliverables.  As such, parNcipaNng agencies agree to 
provide CCFR with this informaNon on a Nmely basis to remain in compliance with the 
requirements of the grant. 

2.4 The parNcipaNng agencies agree to accept the award and accept its respecNve items as listed in 
the applicaNon in the event of the award. 

2.5 The parNcipaNng agencies agree to provide the required cash match in the amount of 10% of the 
total cost of its requested items as detailed in the grant applicaNon, as required under the 
program guidelines.  The required match shall be paid by the parNcipaNng agencies upon receipt 
of an invoice from CCFR, in advance of equipment procurement. 

2.6 In the event of a reduced award, the parNcipaNng agencies agree to accept this reduced amount 
and provide a 10% cash match on the total reduced award amount of its approved items. 

2.7 Any expenditure beyond the grant award for a parNcipaNng agency’s approved item(s) remains 
the sole responsibility of that parNcipaNng agency. 

2.8 The parNcipaNng agencies agree to allow CCFR to procure and distribute their respecNve assets if 
awarded under the program. 

 



2.9 The parNcipaNng agencies agree to maintain/repair all items awarded to them under the 
applicaNon in accordance with the manufacturer’s warranty and to replace the equipment if it 
becomes inoperable for a period of three years aLer the official closeout of the grant agreement. 

2.10 The parNcipaNng agencies agree to promptly provide any addiNonal documentaNon to CCFR as 
requested, that may be necessary in connecNon with the grant. 

2.11 The parNcipaNng agencies agree to promptly return any equipment or deliverables that are 
received in error to CCFR. 

2.12 The grant award to the host agency and each parNcipaNng agency will be P25 compaNble 
equipment in the amounts as follows: 

Agency Total AFG 90% Award AFG 10% Match Total 

Capital City Fire Rescue 40  $370,255.31   $37,025.37   $407,280.68  

Municipality of Anchorage 
Fire Department 

20  $169,909.08   $16,990.92   $186,900.00  

Bayside Fire Department 14  $118,936.35   $11,893.65   $130,830.00  

Chena-Goldstream Fire & 
Rescue 

20  $169,909.08   $16,990.92   $186,900.00  

Chugiak Volunteer Fire & 
Rescue 

15  $127,431.81   $12,743.19   $140,175.00  

City of North Pole Fire 
Department 

12  $101,945.44   $10,194.56   $112,140.00  

City of Whi\er Fire 
Department 

8  $67,963.63   $6,796.37   $74,760.00  

Fairbanks Fire Department 5  $31,245.44   $3,124.56   $34,370.00  

Haines Volunteer Fire 
Department 

13  $110,440.90   $11,044.10   $121,485.00  

Girdwood Fire Rescue 15  $127,431.81   $12,743.19   $140,175.00  

Moose Pass Volunteer Fire 
Company 

10  $84,954.54   $8,495.46   $93,450.00  

Seward Fire Department 15  $127,431.81   $12,743.19   $140,175.00  

Sitka Fire Department 20  $179,490.90   $17,949.10   $197,440.00  

 



Skagway Fire Department 15  $127,431.81   $12,743.19   $140,175.00  

Women’s Bay Volunteer Fire 
Department 

10  $84,954.54   $8,495.46   $93,450.00  

Totals 232 $1,999,732.44 $199,973.24 $2,199,705.68 

 

Ar;cle 3. Term and Termina;on 

This MOU shall be effecNve on the date of last signature of the parNcipaNng agencies herein and shall 
conNnue in full force and effect for a period of five years aLer the official closeout of the grant agreement. 

Ar;cle 4. Guidelines 

In performing its duNes, responsibiliNes, and obligaNons pursuant to this MOU, each parNcipaNng agency 
agrees to adhere to the requirement standards and condiNons set forth in the AFG program guidance and 
2 C.F.R. Part 200 as applicable. 

Ar;cle 5. Records 

5.1 Each parNcipaNng agency understands that any and all records created as a result of parNcipaNng 
in this federal grant program may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Alaska Public Records 
Law (Alaska Statutes, Title 40, Public Records and Recorders) and shall be responsible for 
compliance with any public records request served upon it and any resultant award of anorney’s 
fees for noncompliance. 

5.2 Each parNcipaNng agency shall comply with all applicable requirements contained in AS 40.5 – 
40.25. To the extent that the parNcipaNng agency and this MOU are subject to the requirements 
in Title 40, Alaska Statutes, the parNcipaNng agency shall: (a) keep and maintain public records 
required by CCFR to perform the services provided hereunder; (b) upon request from CCFR 
custodian of public records, provide CCCFR with a copy of the requested records or allow public 
records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable Nme at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in AS 40.25.110, or as otherwise provided by law; (c) ensure that public records that are 
exempt or confidenNal and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed, 
except as authorized by law for the duraNon of the term of this MOU and following compleNon of 
this MOU if the parNcipaNng agency does not transfer the records to CCFR; and (d) upon 
compleNon of the MOU, transfer, at no cost, to CCFR all public records in the possession of the 
parNcipaNng agency or keep and maintain public records required by CCFR to perform the service. 
If the parNcipaNng agency transfers all public records to CCFR upon compleNon of the MOU, the 
parNcipaNng agency shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidenNal 
and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the parNcipaNng agency keeps and 
maintains public records upon compleNon of the MOU, the parNcipaNng agency shall meet all 
applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be 
provided to CCFR, upon request from CCFR’s custodian of public records, in a format that is 
compaNble with the informaNon technology systems of CCFR. If the parNcipaNng agency fails to 
comply with the requirements in this SecNon 5.2, CCFR may enforce these provisions in 
accordance with the terms of this MOU. 

 



5.3 Each parNcipaNng agency shall maintain its own respecNve records and documents associated 
with this MOU sufficient to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this MOU for a period of 
five years from the close-out date of the grant agreement, and shall allow CCFR and the 
Department of Homeland Security access to such records upon request. 

Ar;cle 6. Execu;on 

This MOU may be executed in counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which 
together shall be considered one and the same agreement. 

Ar;cle 7. Insurance or Self-Insurance 

Each parNcipaNng agency at its sole cost and expense, shall carry insurance, or self-insure, its acNviNes in 
connecNon with this MOU, and obtain, keep in force, and maintain, insurance or equivalent programs of 
self-insurance, for general liability, professional liability, workers’ compensaNon, and business automobile 
liability adequate to cover its potenNal liabiliNes hereunder outlined in Appendix A.  Each parNcipaNng 
agency agrees to provide the other parNcipaNng agencies forty-five (45) days advance wrinen noNce of 
any cancellaNon, terminaNon, or lapse of any of the insurance or self-insurance coverage. 

Ar;cle 8. Independent Contractor 

This MOU does not create an employee/employer relaNonship between the parNes.  It is the intent of the 
parNes that each parNcipaNng agency is an independent contractor, and each parNcipaNng agency shall 
assume responsibility for all personnel costs for its respecNve employees, including but not limited to, the 
applicaNon of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage and overNme payments, Federal Insurance 
ContribuNon Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code, the State Workers CompensaNon Act, and State unemployment insurance law. 

Ar;cle 9. No;ces 

Any and all noNces given or required under this MOU shall be in wriNng and may be delivered in person 
or by United States mail, postage prepaid, first class, and cerNfied return receipt requested, addressed as 
follows: 

TO: Capital City Fire Rescue 
Fire Chief 
820 Glacier Avenue 
Juneau, AK, 99801 

With copy to: 

Municipality of Anchorage Fire Department 

Bayside Fire Department 

Chena-Goldstream Fire & Rescue 

Chugiak Volunteer Fire & Rescue 

 



City of North Pole Fire Department 

City of Whi\er Fire Department 

Fairbanks Fire Department 

Haines Volunteer Fire Department 

Girdwood Fire Rescue 

Moose Pass Volunteer Fire Company 

Seward Fire Department 

Sitka Fire Department 

Skagway Fire Department 

Women’s Bay Volunteer Fire Department 

or to such other address as any party may designate by noNce complying with the terms of this ArNcle.  
Each such noNce shall be deemed delivered on the date delivered if by personal delivery or by overnight 
courier; or on the date upon which the return receipt is signed or delivery is refused or the noNce is 
designated by the postal authoriNes as not deliverable, as the case may be if mailed. 

Ar;cle 12. Miscellaneous 

12.1 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. The parNcipaNng agencies shall comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws, codes, ordinances, rules, and regulaNons which may be applicable in performing its duNes, 
responsibiliNes, and obligaNons pursuant to this MOU. 

12.2 JOINT PREPARATION. Each parNcipaNng agency acknowledges that it has sought and received 
competent advice and counsel as was necessary for it to form a full and complete understanding 
of all rights and obligaNons herein and that the preparaNon of this MOU has been its joint effort.  
The language agreed to express its mutual intent and the resulNng document shall not, solely as 
a maner of judicial construcNon, be construed more severely against one of the parNes than the 
other. 

12.3 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This MOU shall be interpreted and construed with and governed 
by the laws of the State of Alaska.  Venue in any proceeding or acNon among the parNes arising 
out of this MOU shall be in the City & Borough of Juneau, Alaska. 

12.4 INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE. The truth and accuracy of each “Whereas” clause set forth 
above is acknowledged by the parNcipaNng agencies. 

12.5 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This MOU contains the enNre understanding of the parNcipaNng agencies 
relaNng to the subject maner hereof superseding all prior communicaNons between the parNes 
whether oral or wrinen. This MOU may not be altered, amended, modified, or otherwise changed 
nor may any of the terms hereof be waived, except by a wrinen instrument executed by the 

 



parNcipaNng agencies. The failure of a parNcipaNng agency to seek redress for violaNon of or to 
insist on strict performance of any of the covenants of this MOU shall not be construed as a waiver 
or relinquishment for the future of any covenant, term, condiNon, or elecNon but the same shall 
conNnue and remain in full force and affect. 

12.6 SEVERABILITY. Should any part, term, or provision of this MOU be by the courts decided to be 
invalid, illegal, or in conflict with any law of this State, the validity of the remaining porNons or 
provisions shall not be affected thereby. 

12.7 UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES. ParNcipaNng agencies shall not be considered to be in default of this 
MOU if delays in or failure of performance shall be due to Uncontrollable Forces, the effect of 
which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the non-performing party could not avoid. The 
term "Uncontrollable Forces" shall mean any event which results in the prevenNon or delay of 
performance by a party of its obligaNons under this MOU and which is beyond the reasonable 
control of the nonperforming party. It includes, but is not limited to fire, flood, earthquakes, 
storms, lightning, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, and governmental acNons. 

Neither party shall, however, be excused from performance if nonperformance is due to forces, 
that are preventable, removable, or remediable, and which the nonperforming party could have, 
with the exercise of reasonable diligence, prevented, removed, or remedied with reasonable 
dispatch. The nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable Nme of being prevented or delayed 
from performance by an uncontrollable force, give wrinen noNce to the other party describing 
the circumstances and uncontrollable forces prevenNng conNnued performance of the obligaNons 
of this MOU. 

12.8 ASSIGNMENT. ParNcipaNng agencies shall not assign or transfer its rights, Ntle, or interests in the 
MOU. 

12.9 NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. The parNcipaNng agencies expressly acknowledge that it is not 
their intent to create or confer any rights or obligaNons in or upon any third person or enNty under 
this MOU. None of the parNes intend to directly or substanNally benefit a third party by this MOU. 
The parNes agree that there are no third-party beneficiaries to this MOU and that no third party 
shall be enNtled to assert a claim against any of the parNes based upon this MOU. Nothing herein 
shall be construed as consent by an agency or poliNcal subdivision of the State of Alaska to be 
sued by third parNes in any maner arising out of any contract. 

12.10 CAPTIONS. The capNons, secNon designaNons, secNon numbers, arNcle numbers, Ntles, and 
headings appearing in this MOU are inserted only as a maner of convenience, have no substanNve 
meaning, and in no way define, limit, construe, or describe the scope or intent of such arNcles or 
secNons of this MOU, nor in any way affect this MOU and shall not be construed to create a 
conflict with the provisions of this MOU. 

12.11 AMENDMENTS. No modificaNon, amendment, or alteraNon in the terms or condiNons contained 
herein shall be effecNve unless contained in a wrinen document prepared with the same or similar 
formality as this MOU and executed and agreed to in wriNng by each party hereto prior to the 
modificaNon, amendment, or alteraNon. 

12.12 NO GRANT OF AGENCY. Except as the parNcipaNng agencies may specify in wriNng, no 
parNcipaNng agency shall have authority, expressed or implied, to act on behalf of the other 

 



parNcipaNng agencies in any capacity whatsoever as an agent. No parNcipaNng agency shall have 
any authority, express or implied, pursuant to this MOU, to bind the other parNcipaNng agency to 
any obligaNon whatsoever. 

12.13 CCFR and/or the City and Borough of Juneau are not responsible for any damages to goods, or 
incomplete or lost shipments.  

 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW  

 



FY 23 AFG Regional Applica;on Host 

 
 
Host Agency:  City and Borough of Juneau 

Capital City Fire Rescue 
 
Address:   155 Heritage Way, Juneau, Alaska 99801 
 
Primary Contact:  Rich Etheridge, Fire Chief 
 
Email:    Rich.Etheridge@juneau.gov  
 
Phone:    (907) 586-5322, ext. 4322 
 
Signature:   ____________________________ 
 
Date:    ____________________________  

 



FY 23 AFG Regional Applica;on Par;cipant 

 
 
ParNcipaNng  
OrganizaNon:  [Insert OrganizaNon Name] 
 
Address:   [Insert Address] 
 
Primary Contact:  [Insert POC Name] 
 
Email:    [Insert POC Email] 
 
Phone:    (907) 000-0000 
 
Signature:   ___________________________ 
 
Date:    ___________________________  

 



Appendix A 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  ParNcipaNng organizaNon has provided cerNficaNon of proper insurance 
coverage, including cerNficate(s) of insurance and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable 
policy language affecNng coverage required in this agreement to CBJ, copies of which are anached to this 
Appendix.  Failure of CBJ to demand such cerNficate(s) or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of CBJ to idenNfy a deficiency from cerNficate(s) or evidence provided 
shall not be construed as a waiver of the obligaNon of ParNcipaNng organizaNon to maintain the insurance 
required by this contract. 

ParNcipaNng organizaNon agrees to maintain insurance as follows at all Nmes while this contract is in 
effect, including during any periods of renewal.   

Commercial General Liability Insurance.  ParNcipaNng organizaNon must maintain Commercial General 
Liability Insurance in an amount it deems reasonably sufficient to cover any suit that may be brought 
against ParNcipaNng organizaNon.  This amount must be at least one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence, and two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) aggregate.  This insurance policy is to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, addi;onal insured status for CBJ, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers.  
If AddiNonal insured status is provided in the form of an endorsement to ParNcipaNng organizaNon’s 
insurance, the endorsement shall be at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 
20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used). 

Workers Compensa;on Insurance.  If required by Alaska Statute (see AS 23.30), ParNcipaNng organizaNon 
must maintain Workers CompensaNon Insurance to protect ParNcipaNng organizaNon from any claims or 
damages for any bodily or personal injury or death which may arise from services performed under this 
contract.  This requirement applies to ParNcipaNng organizaNon's firm, ParNcipaNng organizaNon's sub-
ParNcipaNng organizaNons and assignees, and anyone directly or indirectly employed to perform work 
under this contract.  ParNcipaNng organizaNon must noNfy CBJ as well as the State of Alaska Division of 
Workers CompensaNon immediately when changes in ParNcipaNng organizaNon's business operaNon 
affect ParNcipaNng organizaNon's insurance status.  Statutory limits apply to Workers CompensaNon 
Insurance.  The policy must include employer’s liability coverage of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
per injury and illness, and one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) policy limits. ParNcipaNng organizaNon also 
agrees to provide evidence of Longshore and Harbor Worker’s Insurance and Jones Act coverage if 
applicable to the work required.  If Par;cipa;ng organiza;on is exempt from Alaska Statutory 
Requirements, Par;cipa;ng organiza;on must provide wrieen confirma;on of this status in order for 
CBJ to waive this requirement.  Par;cipa;ng organiza;on grants a waiver of any right to subroga;on 
against CBJ by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance.  This provision applies regardless 
of whether or not CBJ has received a waiver of subrogaNon endorsement from the insurer. 

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance.  ParNcipaNng organizaNon must maintain 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance, which coverage shall apply to all owned, hired, and non-
owned vehicles, with one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limit coverage. This insurance 
policy is to contain, or be endorsed to contain, addi;onal insured status for CBJ, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers. 

 
For any claims related to this contract, the par;cipa;ng organiza;on’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the EnNty, its  

 



officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the EnNty, its 
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the ParNcipaNng organizaNon’s insurance 
and shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability 
policies. 

Waiver of Subroga.on  

ParNcipaNng organizaNon hereby grants to EnNty a waiver of any right to subrogaNon which any insurer 
of said ParNcipaNng organizaNon may acquire against the EnNty by virtue of the payment of any loss under 
such insurance. ParNcipaNng organizaNon agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to 
affect this waiver of subrogaNon, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the EnNty has 
received a waiver of subrogaNon endorsement from the insurer. 

 



Memo 
To: City Council  
From: Danny Wallace 
 
Date: February 20, 2024  
Subject: Paint Plan for Old City Water Plant 

City Council: 
 
For the past year, we’ve been working on a plan to paint the old City water plant (at the corner 
of East 5th and Snowman Ln, across from Santa’s Senior Center).  This building is in caretaker 
status and is often the target of graffiti and vandalism. We’d prefer to make this building less of 
an eyesore and something that could positively contribute to the area’s atmosphere.   We 
contacted the North Pole schools and the Middle School Art Club expressed interest.  The Art 
Club’s sponsor, Ms. Velez-Miller and Principal Harrelson, presented three options to paint one 
side of the building.  These are attached. 
 
The overall plan would include painting using the Middle School Art Club students, supervised 
by adults from the school, and City staff.  We anticipate this would begin not later than May 1st 
and will be finished by the end of the school year (May 17th, 2024).  The City will provide the 
paint and materials. 
 
During this process, we were also contacted by Ms. Tammy Randolph, who runs the State Farm 
Insurance Agency next to the old Water Plant. Along with other citizens.  They expressed 
concern that the paint would negatively impact her business and the overall area. To address 
Ms. Randolph’s and other citizens' concerns, we have opted to paint the opposite side of the 
building the side Snowman Lane (across from Santa’s Senior Center).  Additionally, the overall 
effort will be supervised by adults from the Middle School and City of North Pole.  We will also 
ensure that no damage (i.e., overspray/painting) occurs at the State Farm building property. 
 
Recommend Council approval of this painting plan. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Robert (Danny) Wallace 
Director of City Services 
North Pole, Alaska 

125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, Alaska 99705 
(907) 488-8593 
(907) 488-3002 (fax) 
rwallace@northpolealaska.org 
 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 

 



Water 
Treatment 

Plant

 



North Pole Middle School Art Club Proposals

Option 1 Option 2

Option 3

 



Memo 
To: City Council  
From: Danny Wallace 
 
Date: March 4, 2024  
Subject: Purchase Recommendation (Skid Steer for Public Works) 

City Council: 
 
During the 2024 budget process, City Services requested to set aside funds to purchase a skid 
steer for Public Works.  We budgeted $87,000 for this purchase and it was approved by the 
Council.  We solicited bids from Jan 23 – Feb 14, 2024. 
 
Six bids were received as follows: 
 
Company Price Vehicle Delivery Date Location Met Requirements 
Delta 
Industrial 

$82,575 New Holland 
C337 

In stock Delta 
Junction 

Y 

Yukon 
Equip 

$89,500 Case TV 
370B 

Jun 14, 2024 Fairbanks Y 

North Pole 
Equipment 

$84,275 Wacker 
Neuson ST31 

In stock North Pole N 

ESI $85,700 Kubota 
SVL75-3HF 

In stock Fairbanks N 

NC 
Machinery  

$109,410 Caterpillar 
289D3 

May 5, 2024 Anchorage N 

CMI $105,200 ASV VT75HD Apr 1, 2024 Fairbanks N 
 
We recommend choosing Delta Industrial as the vendor (New Holland C337).  The bid is 
significantly lower than most of the competitors, at a significant discount (retail price is 
$115,000) and meets both the equipment and administrative requirements. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
Robert (Danny) Wallace 

125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, Alaska 99705 
(907) 488-8593 
(907) 488-3002 (fax) 
rwallace@northpolealaska.org 
 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 

 



Director of City Services 
North Pole, Alaska 
 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 


	Agenda - March 4, 2024
	Minutes - February 20, 2024
	Unfinished Business
	Ordinance 2024-02

	New Business
	Ordinance 2024-03
	Request to Council - Sign MOU Assistant to Firefighters Grant
	Old Water Plant Paint Plan Approval.pdf
	e - 2024.02.20 - Letter to Council - Request approval of paint plan for old Water Plant.pdf
	Old Water Plant Painting.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2


	Recommendation to Council - Skid Steer for Public Works 
	Request to Council - Utility Accounts Write Off Request 




